
SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
(Action Items Displayed in Italics) 

THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2025 — 6:00 p.m. 
 

MINUTES — OC PARKS TRAILS SUBCOMMITTEE, THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2025 PAGE 1 

I. ROLL CALL 

Chair Shawver and Members Ball, Browning, Schoeck, and Stout were present. 
Alternate Chair Jones was absent. 

Chair Shawver introduced Member Stout as the newest member of the 
Subcommittee. 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

At this time, members of the public may address the Subcommittee on items of 
public interest that are within the jurisdiction of the Subcommittee and are not 
contained in tonight’s agenda. 

Motion to advance Item IV.C to be heard at this time: Member Shoeck 
Second: Member Ball 
Approved 5–0 

Item IV.C was heard at this time. 

Item II was heard prior to the public comment portion of Item IV.C. 

Craig Dicht, Laguna Canyon Foundation Trails Project Manager, commented on 
Laguna Canyon Foundation’s work on trails. 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR (ITEM A) 

The following item will be approved by one motion unless a Subcommittee Member 
requests to pull a specific item. 

A. APPROVE SUBCOMMITTEE MINUTES FOR THE JANUARY 9, 2025 
MEETING 

Motion: Member Browning 
2nd: Member Shoeck 
Approved 4–0–1 (Member Stout abstained) 

IV. DISCUSSION CALENDAR MATTERS (ITEMS A–C) 

A. TED CRAIG REGIONAL PARK BIKE FACILITY UPDATE 

Staff will present recent developments related to the Ted Craig Regional 
Park Bike Facility project. 

Jeaniene Casiello, OC Parks Planning and Design Manager, introduced 
staff presenting on the item. 



SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
(Action Items Displayed in Italics) 

THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2025 — 6:00 p.m. 
 

MINUTES — OC PARKS TRAILS SUBCOMMITTEE, THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2025 PAGE 2 

Tuan Richardson, OC Parks Senior Landscape Architect, presented on the 
item and answered the Members’ questions. 

Mike Wilson, OC Parks Deputy Director, answered the Members’ questions. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): 

Receive and file. 

Motion: Member Browning 
2nd: Member Schoeck 
Approved 5–0 

B. NATURAL COMMUNITIES COALITION TRAIL MONITORING STUDY 

Natural Communities Coalition staff will present on the Trail Monitoring 
Study in development. 

Jeaniene Casiello, OC Parks Planning and Design Manager, introduced the 
presenter of the item. 

Darin Loughrey, Natural Communities Coalition Outreach and Engagement 
Coordinator, presented on the item and answered the Members’ questions. 

Mike Wilson, OC Parks Deputy Director, answered the Members’ questions. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): 

Receive and file. 

Motion: Member Schoeck 
2nd: Member Ball 
Approved 5–0 

C. CONSIDERATION OF SUPPORT OF EXPLORING POSSIBLE 
ALLOWANCE OF CLASS I ELECTRIC BICYCLE USE ON UNPAVED, 
NATURAL-SURFACE TRAILS IN OC PARKS FACILITIES 

The Subcommittee will consider support of whether OC Parks staff should 
explore the possibility of allowing Class I electric bicycles on unpaved, 
natural surface trails in OC Parks facilities and, in turn, engage with relevant 
regulatory agencies on this subject. 

Jeaniene Casiello, OC Parks Planning and Design Manager provided 
information on the item and answered the Members’ questions. 



SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
(Action Items Displayed in Italics) 

THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2025 — 6:00 p.m. 
 

MINUTES — OC PARKS TRAILS SUBCOMMITTEE, THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2025 PAGE 3 

Ed Maurer, Sierra Club, expressed opposition to e-bikes on trails over 
conservation concerns. 

John Sisson, Sierra Club, expressed opposition to e-bikes on trails and 
stated concerns about the weight and speed of e-bikes contributing to trail 
impacts. 

Steven Emter expressed support for e-bikes on trails, citing increased 
access for individuals with injuries. 

Matt Simanski expressed support for e-bikes on trails and commented that 
there is misinformation on the subject. 

David Small expressed support for e-bikes on trails and noted they provide 
access for those who may not otherwise be able to use trails. 

Garry McCoppin, Sierra Sage/Sierra Club and Irvine Ranch Conservancy 
Volunteer, expressed concerns about enforcement challenges due to the 
difficulty of distinguishing between e-bikes. 

Tyler Makin expressed support for e-bikes on trails as they allow him to bike 
with his son and others. 

Rene Hernandez expressed support for e-bikes on trails as it enables him 
to participate with his son and others on trails. 

Jim Foley commented on the importance of not alienating a significant 
recreational user group and stated his view that e-bikes on trails do not pose 
harm. 

Lisa Lundquist expressed opposition to e-bikes on trails, citing potential 
wildlife impacts, safety concerns for pedestrians, and that they are 
unpleasant for other trail users. 

Phil Salzman expressed opposition to e-bikes on trails, stating that they are 
unnecessary and may degrade trails due to their weight and speed. 

Christine Daily expressed support for e-bikes on trails and commented that 
they provide access for individuals with injuries. 

Michael Wellborn, President of Friends of Harbors, Beaches, and Parks, 
expressed opposition to e-bikes on trails. He stated that e-bikes are already 
present on trails and raised concerns about potential County liability and 
recommended review by County Counsel. 

Chris Murphy expressed support for e-bikes on trails and noted that Class I 
e-bikes are different than bigger dirt bikes or SurRons. 



SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
(Action Items Displayed in Italics) 

THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2025 — 6:00 p.m. 
 

MINUTES — OC PARKS TRAILS SUBCOMMITTEE, THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2025 PAGE 4 

Randee Tolentino expressed support for Class I e-bikes on trails since other 
jurisdictions allow them on trails. 

Ron Schran, Sierra Club, expressed opposition to e-bikes on trails and 
raised questions regarding monitoring and single-track trails. 

William Doyle expressed opposition to e-bikes on trails, citing safety 
concerns. 

Joe Bouchard, Sierra Club, expressed opposition to e-bikes on trails, citing 
limited trail management and a desire to leave single-track trails free of e-
bikes. 

Marlene Paul expressed opposition to e-bikes on trails, noting liability and 
fire risk concerns. 

Joshua Pierce, OC Parks volunteer, commented that he has hear multiple 
complaints from park users regarding e-bike use. 

Helen Maurer, Sierra Club, expressed opposition to e-bikes, citing the 
provisions of the Natural Community Conservation Plan/Habitat 
Conservation Plan and concerns about regulation and enforcement.  

Marcia Garter, Sierra Club, expressed opposition to e-bikes on trails and 
stated that a study of e-bikes on trails would not be a worthwhile use of 
resources. 

Peter Leiby expressed opposition to e-bikes on trails, citing safety concerns 
and potential conflicts with hikers. 

Marigold Filasco expressed opposition to e-bikes, stating that motors are 
not necessary to enjoy nature sharing concerns about the risk of injury as a 
hiker. 

James Dinwiddie, OC Parks Deputy Director, answered the Members’ 
questions. 

Mike Wilson, OC Parks Deputy Director, answered the Members’ questions. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): 

Determine if the OC Parks Trails Subcommittee is supportive of exploring 
the possibility of allowing Class I electric bicycles on unpaved, natural 
surface trails in OC Parks facilities and, in turn, further engage with 
regulatory agencies regarding allowing Class I electric bicycles on unpaved, 
natural surfaces trails in OC Parks facilities. 



SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
(Action Items Displayed in Italics) 

THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2025 — 6:00 p.m. 
 

MINUTES — OC PARKS TRAILS SUBCOMMITTEE, THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2025 PAGE 5 

Chair Shawver moved to approve an alternative Recommended Action as 
follows: Forward to the OC Parks Commission tonight’s gathered 
information, documentation, correspondence, and tonight’s public 
testimony relative to Class I electric bicycles on unpaved, natural surfaces 
and trails in Orange County for their review and to study with all 
stakeholders and local agencies. 

Motion: Chair Shawver 
2nd: Member Browning 
Approved 3–2 (Members Ball and Stout voted “No”) 

V. SUBCOMMITTEE EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

A. DEPARTMENT UPDATES 

Jeaniene Casiello, OC Parks Planning and Design Manager, provided 
updates and answered the Members’ questions.  

VI. SUBCOMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS AND REPORT 

At this time, Subcommittee Members may comment on agenda or non-agenda 
matters, provided that no action may be taken on off-agenda items unless 
authorized by law.  

VII. ADJOURNMENT 8:14 p.m. 


